
Page 1 of 2 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting 
October 19, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

Community Room of the Municipal Complex 
43 Bombardier Rd., Milton, VT 05468 

 

Use of cell phones is prohibited during the meeting. Please shut them off or silence them. 
 

AGENDA 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Flag Salute 

 
III. Agenda Review 

 
IV. Public Forum 

A Public Forum will be limited to five minutes per person.  All participants must sign 
in and clearly state their name.  No action will be taken on items raised until a 
subsequent meeting (if action is needed by the Selectboard). 

 

V. New Business and Department Items 
A. Declare November 1, 2015, Extra Mile Day 
(Consider approval) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 

B. Monthly Update – Town Finances 
(Informational) 
Joanne Davis, Finance Director 

C. Authorize Town Manager to Sign Agreement with State of VT to Develop 
Rte. 7 Intersection Improvement Project Conceptual Construction Cost 
Estimate  

(Consider approval) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager, Roger Hunt, DPW Director 
 
D. Authorize Town Manager to Make Loan Payment on Truck Purchase 
(Consider approval) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager  

E. Set Date for Next Selectboard Meeting 
(Consider approval) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 

 
VI. 7:00 pm - Public Hearing 

Boves of Vermont, Applicant, has applied for Public Monument and Statue 
Application Approval from the Milton Selectboard pursuant to the Town's Zoning 
Regulations Section 760, Public Monuments and Statues.  The site is owned by 
Greater Burlington Industrial Corp. and is described as 8 Catamount Drive, Tax Map 



Page 2 of 2 
 

8, Parcel 17, SPAN 13974.  The property has Site Plan and Zoning Permit approval 
for a 20,000 square foot manufacturing use and building.  The proposal would add 
an illuminated, (4) four-foot wide, (11) eleven-foot long, and (15) fifteen-foot high 
statue (mounted on a concrete base with an interpretive plaque) along the site's US 
Route 7 frontage. No other changes are proposed. 

(Consider approval) 
Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 

VII. Old Business 
A. Authorize Bond Anticipation Note 
(Consider Approval) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 

 B. H. 249 Regional Council of Governments  
(Informational) 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 

VIII. Reconsideration 
 

IX. Manager’s Report  
 

X. Potential and/or Future Agenda Items 
 
XI. Warrant/Report #8 

 
XII. Minutes Meeting October 5  (To approve with or without corrections) 

XIII. Anticipated/Potential Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313  

XIV. Adjournment 
 
Posted October 16, 2015 on the official bulletin board in the lobby of the Municipal Building to 
the Town Website emailed to the Burlington Free Press, Milton Independent, Lake Champlain 
Access Television, Fox 44 News, WPTZ, WCAX, and posted in two other places within the Town 
of Milton and filed with the Town Clerk. 
 
Signed:  Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 
 
 



Resolution  

 

   
Extra Mile Day 2015 

 
WHEREAS, Milton, VT is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy exists within the 
entire community when its individual citizens collectively “go the extra mile” in personal effort, 
volunteerism, and service; and 
  
WHEREAS, Milton, VT is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their personal 
contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly and with total effort, 
commitment, and conviction to their individual ambitions, family, friends, and community; and 
  
WHEREAS, Milton, VT is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate individuals 
and organizations within its community who “go the extra mile” in order to make a difference and 
lift up fellow members of their community; and 
  
WHEREAS, Milton, VT acknowledges the mission of Extra Mile America to create 550 Extra Mile 
cities/towns in America and is proud to support “Extra Mile Day” on November 1, 2015. 
  
NOW THEREFORE, We the Selectboard of Milton, VT do hereby proclaim November 1, 2015, to be 
Extra Mile Day. We urge each individual in the community to take time on this day to not only “go 
the extra mile” in his or her own life, but to also acknowledge all those who are inspirational in 
their efforts and commitment to make their organizations, families, community, country, or world a 
better place. 
 
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chair        Stuart King, Vice Chair     
   
___________________________________               ___________________________________ 
John Bartlett, Clerk        John Cushing       
 
___________________________________ 
Kenneth Nolan 
 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2015 
 
Attest: _______________________________________________________________   
                                                 Milton Town Clerk 



Town of Milton, Vermont  05468-3205 

________________________________________ 
Finance Director, 43 Bombardier Road  802-891-8049  Fax: 893-1005 
 

Finance Report for September, 2015 

For this month's finance report I included a budget vs actual report.  To make this report clearer the 

report reflects the actual spent through September and an additional encumbered column for 

anticipated expenses for which we have not been invoiced. 

I evaluated the collection of current tax dollars for this year compared with the last six and find that we 

are on target with the previous years at about 46% received.  In previous years we collected from 43.8% 

to 46.01%.  Expenses to date, including encumbered expenses is at about 27% of the budget for the 

year.  Past years have ranged from 25% to 26.5% but these do not include the encumbered expenses.   

While reviewing the financial information I worked with several staff regarding revenue that comes 

through their department.    I will be working closely with them preparing the revenue budget for FY17.  

I understand that the board will be reviewing all fees and have been working with department heads to 

help identify those fees that they currently use and if a fee is no longer charged, why.    

There are a couple of departments who have special circumstances surrounding their expenses.   The 

Elections department was required to complete a voter challenge which significantly increased their 

postage costs.   Increased dispatch costs (nearly 20% higher) from Colchester Dispatch have impacted  

the police, fire and rescue budgets.   The highway department was offered a significant savings if they 

purchased their sand prior to the pit closing so they purchased the winter sand earlier than they 

typically do.   The Library has experienced increase salaries and associated costs over last year as they 

have added five hours to the amount of time they are open each week.  Recreation experienced a 

significant increase in their revenue programs expense because of increased programming and summer 

camps. 

There are also a few departments who have experienced savings with regard to their expenses.   Payroll 

is down in a couple of departments because of staffing changes.  There was a significant decrease in the 

HRA contributions this year.   The Health Officer budget supports various agencies who request 

donations from the town each year.  Some of these agencies have not yet requested their allocation 

creating a savings of approximately half of the health officer budget. 

Department heads had our first FY2017 budget meeting with Donna.   Each department was asked to 

present challenges to developing their budget.  In addition, Donna explained the budget process she 

would like to see so that staff presentations will be uniform and informative to the budget process.   This 

meeting was extremely helpful to all staff with clear direction from Donna. 



Erik has kept all department heads informed of expected timelines for the budget process.  At this point 

all department heads have presented their budget requests to finance and are working on getting their 

capital improvement requests completed.   

In summation, while expenses are up year to date, revenue has been tracking up as well.  There are no 

alarming trends in any of the departments.   All departments are working on their FY17 projections and 

are looking forward to presenting them to the board. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
  Joanne Davis, Finance Director  















































AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

STATE OF VERMONT 
AGENCY OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND 
TOWN OF MILTON 

FOR 
MILTON STP 5800(3) 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ____ day of ____________________, 20_____, 
between the State of Vermont, acting through its Agency of Transportation, with its 
principal office at 1 National Life Drive, Montpelier, Vermont  05633-5001 (the "STATE") 
and the Town of Milton, with its principal office at 43 Bombardier Road, Milton, VT (the 
"MUNICIPALITY"). 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H : 
 

WHEREAS, the STATE has programmed a federal-aid highway project (“the 
PROJECT”) identified as MILTON STP 5800(3) which shall provide certain highway 
improvements on US Route 7 in the Town of Milton described as follows;  
 

Project Location:  Located in the County of Chittenden, Town of Milton, 
on US Route 7 beginning at approximately MM 3.737 and extending north 
along US Route 7 to an end point at MM 4.002; 
 
Project Description: Construction of additional lanes on US Route 7, 
construction of a new road segment connecting US Route 7 to Railroad 
Street, installation of new traffic signals, paving, new pavement markings, 
sidewalk, drainage improvements, signs and other related highway items.   

 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the MUNICIPALITY, has requested to expand the PROJECT to 
include additional elements referred to as “the Southern Segment”, described as 
follows: 

 
Construction of a new road segment connecting US Route 7 to Middle 
Road, associated widening on US Route 7 for turn lanes and signalization 
of the new road/US Route 7 intersection, paving, new pavement markings, 
sidewalk, drainage improvements, signs and other related highway items.   
 

and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the MUNICIPALITY desires the improvements as described above; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the MUNICIPALITY further desires that the state provide the 
MUNICIPALITY with a conceptual estimate of the costs which would be borne by the 
municipality to secure funding to implement the Southern Segment of the 



Milton STP 5800(3)   PAGE 2 OF 4 

ProjectPROJECT.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises above and the mutual 
agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
1. State/Municipal Costs. The STATE shall develop a conceptual construction cost 
estimate for the Project PROJECT delineating ed by the costs of the PROJECT to be 
borne separately by the STATE and MUNICIPALITY(only as to the Southern Segment, 
respectively. 

 
2.  Timeline.  The STATE shall deliver a conceptual construction cost estimate to the 
MUNICIPALITY no later than November 30, 2015. 
 
3.  Response.  The MUNICIPALITY shall notify the STATE of its intent to fund the 
Southern Segment of the Project PROJECT no later than April 15, 2016.  In the event 
that the MUNICIPALITY secures funding approval for and wishes to proceed with the 
Southerly Segment of the ProjectPROJECT and so notifies the STATE, the parties will 
negotiate in good faith an agreement will be executed between them STATE and the 
MUNICIPALITY outlining their respective roles and responsibilities for the development 
of the Southerly Segement of the ProjectPROJECT; the rest and remainder of the 
PROJECT shall be undertaken regardless of the Town’s decision with respect to the 
Southern Segment.. 
 
4.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof, supersedes all prior oral or written 
negotiations, agreements, understandings and courses of dealing between the parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof and is subject to no understandings, conditions, or 
representations other than those expressly stated herein.  This Agreement may only be 
modified or amended by a writing which states that it modifies or amends this 
Agreement and which is signed by both parties. 
 
5.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of 
Vermont. 
 
6.  No Gifts or Gratuities.  MUNICIPALITY shall not give title or possession of any 
thing of substantial value (including property, currency, travel and/or education 
programs) to any officer or employee of the STATE during the term of this Agreement. 
 
7.  Interpretation of Agreement.  If an ambiguity or question of intent arises with 
respect to any provision of this Agreement, the Agreement will be construed as if 
drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof will arise favoring or 
disfavoring either party by virtue of authorship of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
8.  Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Agreement are for 
reference and convenience only and in no way define or limit the scope and contents of 
this Agreement or in any way affect its provisions. 
 
9.  Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the parties and their respective successors and assigns. 



Milton STP 5800(3)   PAGE 3 OF 4 

  Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Exactly 10 pt



Milton STP 5800(3)   PAGE 4 OF 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the State of Vermont has caused its name to be subscribed 
this ____ day of ________________________, 20_____, by Susan M. Minter [Chris 
Cole], its [Deputy] Secretary of Transportation and duly authorized agent. 
 
      STATE OF VERMONT 

AGENCY OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
     By: ________________________________ 

Susan M. Minter [Chris Cole] 
[Deputy] Secretary of Transportation  
and Duly Authorized Agent 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
DATED: ______________________  
 
_____________________________  
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Milton has caused its name to be 
subscribed this ____ day of _____________________, 20_____, by 
_______________, its ________________________________ and duly authorized 
agent(s). 
 
            TOWN OF MILTON 
            (MUNICIPALITY) 
 
            _________________________________ 
 
 
            _________________________________ 
 
 
            _________________________________ 
 
 
            _________________________________ 
 
 
            _________________________________ 
            Its Duly Authorized Agents 



P:\Selectboard \SLB.2015.02.Catamount8.Monument.SR.docx 
 

TOWN OF MILTON 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, VT 05468-3205 
(802) 893-1186 
miltonvt.org 
 

 

SELECTBOARD STAFF REPORT 
Hearing Date:  October 19, 2015  

Case No: SLB2015-02 

Application(s): Public Monument/Statue  

Application Received:  October 8, 2015 

Application Deemed Complete:  October 8, 2015 

Staff Report Finalized: October 15, 2015  

Applicant(s):  
Boves of Vermont, Inc. 
218 Overlake Drive 
Colchester, VT 05446 

Owner(s):   
Greater Burlington Industrial Corporation 
PO Box 186 
Burlington, VT 05402 

Engineer/License:  
None 

Surveyor/License:  
None 

E-911/Postal Address:  8 Catamount Drive (Catamount Industrial Park Lot 17) 

Tax Map, Parcel(s): 3, 8-17 

School Parcel Account Number(s) (SPAN): 13974 

Deed(s):  Book 81, Page 591 

Existing Size: 6.82 acres 

Zoning District(s):  General Industrial "I2" 

Comprehensive Plan Planning Area/Sub-Area: Catamount 

Location:  Corner Lot with frontage on US Route 7 South and Catamount Drive 

 
 



Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 1 of 7 Planning Department 
 

INTRODUCTION  
 
Noticed Summary of Proposal: Boves of Vermont Inc., Applicant, is requesting public 
monument/statue approval from the Milton Selectboard pursuant to the Town's Zoning Regulations 
Section 760, Public Monuments and Statues.  The site is owned by Greater Burlington Industrial Corp. 
and is described as 8 Catamount Drive, Tax Map 3, Parcel 8-17, SPAN 13974.  The site contains 
approximately 6.82 acres and is located within the General Industrial (I2) Zoning District and the 
Catamount Comprehensive Planning Area.  The property has Site Plan and Zoning Permit approval for 
a 20,000 square foot manufacturing use and building.  The proposal would add an illuminated, (4) 
four-foot wide, (11) eleven-foot long, and (15) fifteen-foot high statue (mounted on a concrete base with 
an interpretive plaque) along the site's US Route 7 frontage. No other changes are proposed. 

 
Comments:  Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director, herein referred to as staff, has reviewed the 
application, materials and plans submitted and has the following comments.   
 
Numbered Items:  The numbered items below request points of clarification, frame discretionary 
decisions for the panel, and recommend conditions of approval. 

 
 

PROCEDURE 
 
Ethics:  The Selectboard, in this case, is acting as the appropriate municipal panel in a quasi-judicial 
hearing.  The Town's Charter Section 701(c) requires recusal if a member has a director or indirect 
conflict of interest.  Further, is best practice to disclose any real, potential or perceived conflicts of 
interest as well as any ex parte communications with the applicant or interested persons.    
 
Hearing: Staff recommends that the Chair open the hearing, read the noticed summary, allow an 
opportunity for any disclosures/recusals, swear in all interested persons wishing to testify or submit 
evidence, give the applicant an opportunity explain the project, and read the numbered items below 
allowing response for each.  The Board may close the hearing or continue (or recess) the hearing, if 
further evidence or plan alterations are needed.  The board may deliberate and vote after the hearing 
has been closed in open or in a private deliberative session.  The board is not required to take a vote in 
open session, since the written decision must document the Board's findings of facts, conclusions and 
decision within 45 days of the close of the hearing.   
 

APPLICATION, JURISDICTION AND NOTICE 
 
Application:  This matter comes before the Town of Milton Selectboard for monument/statue 
approval. 
 
Applicant(s):  The application was submitted by Boves of Vermont, Inc. referred to hereafter as the 
"applicant". 
 
Application Submission: The application form and associated exhibits were received by the Planning 
and Economic Development Department on October 8, 2015.   The application and its associated 
materials are maintained by the Town in the application file and are available for public inspection 
 
Application Completion:  The application was deemed complete by staff on October 8, 2015. 

http://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/117/04465
http://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/117/04464


Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 2 of 7 Planning Department 
 

 
Landowner(s): The property is owned by Greater Burlington Industrial Corporation. 
 
General Jurisdiction:  Land development is subject to regulation by the Town of Milton pursuant to, 
but not limited to the following: The Vermont Planning and Development Act (Act); The Town of 
Milton Zoning Regulations (ZR), effective January 5, 2015; the Town of Milton Interim Zoning 
Regulations (IZR) effective February 26, 2015; and The Town of Milton Subdivision Regulations (SR), 
effective June 28, 2010. 
 
Specific Jurisdiction: ZR110 states, "No LAND DEVELOPMENT shall be undertaken or effected except 
in conformance with the applicable provisions of these Regulations.  No land, building or other 
STRUCTURE shall be used for any purpose except as provided in these Regulations." 
 
ZR130 states, "In accordance with Section 1000 of this Ordinance, no LAND DEVELOPMENT, excavation 
or construction shall be started on any land parcel or STRUCTURE and no EXPANSION, ALTERATION 
or change of USE shall be started within any existing STRUCTURE without a Zoning Permit issued by 
the Zoning Administrator." 
 
As a General Provision of the Regulations, ZR760 states, "The placement of public monuments and 
statues accessible to the general public, regardless of property ownership, shall be allowed in all zoning 
districts with approval by the Selectboard." 
 
Notice of Hearing: Public notice was issued by the Department of Planning and Economic Development 
for the hearing according to Vermont Statutes Annotated Chapter 24 §4464. 
 
Hearing: The application was scheduled by staff for public hearing by the Selectboard on October 19 
2015.   
 
Compliance:  There are no compliance issues with the site. 
 
Application Exhibits: The following exhibits were submitted with the application and attached to the 
Staff Report:   

 Front and Side Elevation of the Sculpture and Site Location, as received by the Department on 
October 8, 2015. 

 
Staff Exhibits: No additional exhibits from staff are attached to the Staff Report, although Staff discussed 
the proposal with the applicant, who explained that the proposal also includes: a concrete platform; 
lighting; and an interpretive plaque (included in the summary above). 

 
Site Visit:  The Selectboard may schedule a site visit and recess the hearing to a subsequent meeting if 
on-site observation would better inform the decision.  
 

SITE, DISTRICT, AND AREA BACKGROUND 
 
Property Location:  The subject property is located at 8 Catamount Drive and shown on Milton's Tax 
Map 3 as Parcel 8-17. The corresponding School Parcel Account Number (SPAN) is 13974. 
 



Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 3 of 7 Planning Department 
 

Property Deeds:  A Deed of ownership is recorded in Book 81, Page 591  of the Town of Milton Land 
Records. 
 
Size/Area:  The site is approximately 6.82 acres. 
 
Access:  The site is accessed from Catamount Drive. 

 
Surrounding Use/Structures:  The site is bordered by subdivision common land to the east, single 
family dwellings to the north and south, and predominantly industrial and commercial uses to the 
southwest and west. 
 
Zoning District:  The site is located within the General Industrial (I2) Zoning District described on the 
Town of Milton Zoning Map, last amended August 22, 2011, on record and display at the Municipal 
Offices and available on the Town's website.     
 
Zoning District Purpose:  The ZR391 states that the purpose of this district is to "provide adequate 
space for industrial uses, specified large scale retail uses which require room for EXPANSION, and space 
for OUTDOOR STORAGE. These areas are not intended for businesses that will create a high level of 
retail traffic." 
 
Comprehensive Planning Area:  The site is located within the Catamount Planning Area, as delineated 
in Map 2 of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. The Plan states the following goals for this area:  
 

Goal 9.7.1.Encourage high quality industrial development in a sub-regional growth center, 
which will provide greater employment opportunities and broaden the tax base. 

Objective 9.7.1.a.Develop standards to enhance the appearance and quality of 
development in this major gateway into the Town of Milton. 
Objective 9.7.1.b.Maintain buffer zones to prevent encroachment of industrial and 
commercial uses into the residential areas. 

Goal 9.7.2.Ensure an aesthetically pleasing approach into Milton. 
Objective 9.7.2.a.Develop a plan to work towards enhancing the character of Route 7. 
Objective 9.7.2.b.Encourage high quality planned unit developments to cluster new 
housing in a way that minimizes visual impacts from Route 7. 

Goal 9.7.3.Enhance multi-modal transportation opportunities. 
 
Background:  The subject property received Site Plan approval from the Development Review Board 
(DRB) on August 28, 2015 for a 30,000 square foot manufacturing building and use, and Zoning Permit 
2015-101 approval from the Zoning Administrator on August 6, 2015.  On October 8, 2015, the 
Applicant submitted a Site Plan Amendment application (yet to be heard by the DRB) to reduce the 
size of the proposed manufacturing facility. 
 
Proposed Improvements:  The applicant proposes an illuminated, (4) four-foot wide, (11) eleven-foot 
long, and (15) fifteen-foot high statue of a monkey (mounted on a concrete base with an interpretive 
plaque) along and near the site's US Route 7 frontage. 
 
Existing Improvements to be Retained:  Staff has tentatively reviewed the October 8, 2015 Site Plan 
amendment application, and it appears that the proposed statue would not be effected by the proposed 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/government/docs/CompPlan.pdf


Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 4 of 7 Planning Department 
 

amendments to the Site Plan; however the statue was not included on the plans going before the DRB 
for amendment. Because a statue is a structure (per ZR1110) and because this structure requires a 
Zoning Permit (per ZR130), the applicant must also obtain Site Plan amendment (per ZR170 and 800).    
 
If this application approved by the Selectboard, the next issue becomes about timing to meet the 
requirements above.  For instance, if approved by the Selectboard prior to the DRB's hearing, staff will 
work with the applicant to include the statue (as approved by the SLB) as part of the DRB's review and 
Final Plan submission.  Otherwise, the Site Plan will have to be approved administratively (per ZR801) 
to add the statue to the Final Plans.  The following conditions are needed to ensure conformance with 
the regulations. 
 

1. If approved, the applicant shall obtain Site Plan approval for the proposed statute prior to being 
eligible for a Zoning Permit. 

 
2. The Site Plan application exhibits shall show the dimensions of the proposed slab. 

 

3. The Site Plan application exhibits shall show the size and location of the proposed plaque in 
compliance with the sign regulations of ZR830, being no more than 4 square feet in area 
pursuant to ZR832(4). 

 

4. The Site Plan application exhibits shall show that the light fixtures are served by buried electric 
lines and are in compliance with Milton's outdoor lighting requirements of Zoning Regulation 
Section 820. 

 
5. The Site Plan application exhibits shall not conflict with the site's approved landscaping 

plans/plantings, stormwater system, or other approved features. 
 

PROPOSAL REVIEW 
 
Dimensional Conformity:  ZR760 states, "Public monuments shall be exempt from the dimensional 
requirements of all zoning districts, however shall conform to Section 815."   
 
Visibility Triangles: ZR815.1 states, "In all districts on a CORNER LOT, there shall be no obstruction to 
vision within the triangular area formed by the intersection of the edge of the two (2) STREETS and a 
third line joining them at points twenty-five (25) feet away from their intersection."  Staff finds that the 
proposed location of the monument conforms to ZR815. 
 
Standards of Review:  Staff finds that while ZR760 does not give specific standards for review, the 
proposal is best evaluated through the General Standards of ZR160, Accessory Structure Standards of 
ZR580, and Site Plans standards of ZR802 -- although there may be other applicable standards that the 
Board wishes to take into consideration. 
 
ZR580, Accessory Structures & Uses:  The section states: 
 

The following standards shall apply: 
(c) LIKE KIND QUALITY Standard: “Like kind quality” is a suitable standard in historic 

areas or other established neighborhoods.  In emerging areas and in locations where 



Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 5 of 7 Planning Department 
 

future plans differ from existing development, quality of a development may be judged in 
relation to the standards of an approved Town Core Master Plan. 

 
ZR1110 defines "like kind quality" as follows: 
 

Having characteristics that allow a use to be located in harmony with other adjacent uses and to 
be compatible with the overall character of the neighborhood. Some elements affecting 
compatibility include HEIGHT, scale, mass and bulk of structures. Other characteristics include 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic, circulation, access and parking impacts. Other important 
characteristics that affect compatibility are landscaping, lighting, noise, odor and architecture. 
Compatibility does not mean "the same as." Rather, compatibility refers to the sensitivity of 
development proposals in maintaining the character of existing development. 

 
There is no similar structure within this emerging area.  The Town Core Master Plan of December 2000 
does not list any standards for areas outside the Town Core.  However, the Comprehensive Plan's goals, 
as listed above, encourage an enhanced character, appearance, and aesthetic for this gateway into town.   
 
Staff notes that a statue next to the Town's most visible roadway will become a notable landmark for the 
community and visitors, define the character of the area, and could establish a consequential precedent for 
Milton's long-term image if similar applications follow. 
 
ZR580, Accessory Structures & Uses:  The Section states, "ACCESSORY USES and STRUCTURES, as 
defined in Section 1010 of this Ordinance, shall be allowed in all districts, subject to the following 
provisions:  580.2, Nuisance: They do not constitute a threat or nuisance to the health, safety, and welfare 
of neighboring property owners." 
 
Site Plan Review Standards & Procedures: ZR802.2(a) states  that the DRB "may consider the 
following in its review of a Site Plan application.   

 Site Circulation Safety:  Maximum safety of vehicular and pedestrian circulation on site, 
between the site and adjacent roads and sidewalks, and between the site and adjacent land uses 

 Circulation, Parking, Loading Adequacy: Adequacy of traffic circulation, parking, and loading 
facilities. 

 Transportation Impacts:  Impacts on capacity of roadways and other transportation facilities in 
the vicinity. 

 Landscaping, Screening, Lighting Adequacy: Adequacy of landscaping, screening, and 
outdoor lighting. 

 Municipal Service Impact: Impacts on the Town’s ability to provide adequate sewer, water, 
fire, police, or other municipal services and facilities. 

 Suitability for Development: Suitability of the site for the proposed scope of development, 
including due regard for the preservation of existing natural and historical resources. 

 Comprehensive Plan Consistency: Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Staff has three concerns related to the Like Kind, Accessory Structure, and Site Plan standards above: 

 First, staff is concerned about the impact to the character and harmony of the area.  Staff does 
not find that the placement of the statue is compatible with the scaling and massing of its 
surroundings when placed close to US Route 7 South. 



Selectboard Case No. 2015-02 Staff Report 
Monument/Statue - 8 Catamount Drive - Boves of Vermont - October 19, 2015  

 

Town of Milton Page 6 of 7 Planning Department 
 

 Second, staff is concerned about transportation impact, safety, and neighborhood welfare.    
Staff estimates that the placement of a large, unusual focal point so close to US Route 7 could 
result in: distracted driving, slowed driving, and roadside parking (to take pictures).   These 
behavioral changes would affect the welfare of the nearby residential neighbors, reduce the 
functionality of a heavily trafficked commuter corridor, and present potential risk to drivers, 
cyclists and pedestrians in the vicinity -- all of which are not in the public interest.   

 Third, the Plan calls for a multi-use path for this area, for which a future easement may be 
needed to realize.  

 
Therefore, Staff recommends the following condition: 
 

6. The Final Plans shall relocate the statue within the flat, open area adjacent to the building and 

parking lot (but still visible from US Route 7); placed at least five feet from any other structure. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Planning Staff recommends that the DRB approve the public monument/statue approval from the 
Milton Selectboard pursuant to the Town's Zoning Regulations Section 760, Public Monuments and 
Statues for the site described as 8 Catamount Drive, Tax Map 3, Parcel 8-17, SPAN 13974 with the 
conditions proposed as numbered items above. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Front and Side Elevation of the Sculpture and Site Location 
 
COPIES TO: 

Applicant(s) 

Owners(s) 



















 

DRAFT 
Council of Governments (COG) FAQ 

 
 
WHY NOW? 

The cost to deliver virtually all municipal services continues to rise with no end in sight. For the most part, 
those costs are outpacing the combination of growth in our grand lists and the property taxes that our 
taxpayers are willing to commit.  

At the same time municipal government is being asked to provide additional services or services that are of a 
higher quality.  In addition, the requirements to comply and participate in Federal and State programs are 
getting more complex and require more professional staff resources beyond the ability of volunteer boards.   

This is an unsustainable model, and elected officials and senior managers are seeking solutions that lead to 
sustainability even while continuing to provide the quality of service expected by the taxpayers.  To do nothing 
invites financial disaster down the road or the erosion of services and quality of life for our residents.  What we 
need is a model that provides the opportunity to not only save money, but also improve the level and quality 
of services. 

THE IMPACT OF HISTORY 

Governance in Vermont has evolved over the centuries and local government has become more complex, 
active and costly.  

One important governance factor that has changed little  over the centuries are municipal boundaries. By and 
large, the same boundaries that existed 200 or more years ago separating one community from another exist 
to this day, even as modern society and the demands the public places on government have changed 
dramatically.  As people and commerce  move freely from one municipal jurisdiction to another the boundaries 
of service delivery remain the same as they were hundreds of years ago.  These boundaries act almost like a 
wall when it comes to government service delivery. 

That does not mean there are no good examples of communities joining together to provide a vital service to 
their combined populations.  Examples of such “regionalized” government service providers are the Central 
Vermont Public Safety District, EC Fiber, Champlain Water District, solid waste districts, transit agencies, 
regional planning commissions, and others.   

These organizations were formed because leaders in place at their time of origin believed that the delivery of 
these services could be done more efficiently and more effectively on a regional basis.  So, the question is, if 
the delivery of water, solid waste services, bus service and others can be done more efficiently across 
municipal borders and to a larger volume of customers, why doesn’t it make equal sense to provide other 
services in the same way?  What is the deciding factor in this question; is it economics and value to the 
taxpayer or is it politics and control? 

 

THE CHALLENGE TO MUNICIPALITIES 



 
Municipalities are asked to provide a range of high quality services to their residents while always being 
mindful of what taxpayers can afford.  It is, in fact, a central component of municipalities to constantly 
scrutinize how they deliver services in order to ensure that their taxpayers are getting the best value for their 
investments.  Oftentimes this requires municipalities to think in new and creative ways --- some would say 
“outside the box” – in delivering those services.   

COG PROPOSAL 

This legislation would enable Regional Planning Commissions (RPCs), to convert to a Council of Government 
(COG) and be able to offer municipal government services to municipalities on a regional basis.  Municipalities 
in existing RPCs would have the option of deciding to convert their RPC into a COG; it would not be mandatory.  
A super majority vote of 60% of the municipal governing bodies would be required.   

The newly created COG would retain all of the RPC existing roles and responsibilities.  A COG would have no 
taxing authority or power of eminent domain. The only services beyond current RPC services will be those 
which municipalities, through the COG, vote to provide and fund.  The decision to participate in or purchase a 
particular service would be decided by each municipality’s elected body and not imposed by the other member 
municipalities or the COG. 

Representation on the COG would be decided by each municipality’s elected body.  Based on models in other 
states, it works best if the municipal representative is a member of the local legislative body.  Either way the 
representative needs to be able to have clear and consistent communication with municipal government. 

 

We recommend that the enabling language be included in Chapter 117 and perhaps referenced in Chapter 121 
to make clear that COGs can provide all services that union municipal districts and municipalities have 
authority to provide with the exception of taxation and eminent domain. 

 
What is a Council of Governments (COG)?  A multi-service entity formed by municipalities with state- 
and locally-defined boundaries that delivers a variety of federal, state, and local programs while 
carrying out its function as a planning organization, technical assistance provider, and supporter of its 
member local governments. As such, COGs and are accountable to municipalities and effective 
partners for state and federal governments. In the case of Vermont, if municipalities decide to turn 
their RPC into a COG the boundary would match the existing RPC boundaries.  
 
How is this different from a Regional Planning Commission (RPC)?   COGs would assume the same 
RPC responsibilities currently in statute and would assume the existing contractual obligations of the 
RPC. Each regional commission, through action of municipalities would also have the option of 
creating a Council of Governments (COG). A COG can explicitly and more easily enter into voluntary 
formal agreements to share or provide municipal services and programs and the full costs for the 
same.  The COG is then responsible for the execution and management of these services and 
programs on behalf of the municipalities.  Because municipalities would be entering into financial 



 
relationships with one another and the COG, municipal representation on the COG should include a 
standard for  local elected official participation on the COG Board.  

What kinds of administrative or program services can a COG provide?  Any governmental  program 
or service towns provide on their own, as well as shared programs, such as cooperative purchasing 
programs that improve efficiency of service delivery and cost-effectiveness.  A few examples of 
administrative services include zoning administration, financial management, animal control, and 
flood hazard administration.  Shared programs or contracted services may include activities such as 
service delivery related to health, safety, economic and community development, information 
technology, transportation/road materials, heating fuel, over the guardrail mowing, or shared 
hydroseeders.   

What are the benefits to member municipalities?  In some cases the sharing of services or programs 
may result in reduced costs.  In other cases, municipalities may receive more and/or better service for 
the money they spend.  In all cases, participation in any particular service or program would be 
voluntary.  The COG would be a known entity that is within the control of its member governments, 
and which would have the technical expertise to perform services that meet various programmatic 
requirements such as federal or state purchasing or contracting rules. 

How are the services and programs funded?  In COG systems in other states funding sources vary, 
but each service or program should be self-supporting, meaning the participating municipalities 
support the full cost directly or through grants.  As is noted above, participation in any particular COG 
provided service is voluntary.  If a service or program isn’t working or doesn’t make financial sense it 
is discontinued.  In this way each service or program is fundamentally performance-based. 

Is a COG a new layer of Government? 

No, a newly formed COG would take the place of an existing RPC so there is no additional layer of 
government.  The new COG is established to provide better and a more diverse set of services for 
municipalities. 

Why is COG enabling needed now? 

The complexities and challenges municipalities face in meeting the needs of their residents has 
become more problematic and costly with each passing year.   A COG provides an additional option to 
help municipalities manage these challenges under the direction of the participating towns when 
such a cooperative relationship allows for more efficient and effective service delivery.    

For more information, contact: 

Jim Sullivan, Director. jsullivan@bcrcvt.org 

802-442-0458 

VAPDA 

mailto:jsullivan@bcrcvt.org


BILL AS INTRODUCED H.249 

2015 Page 1 of 4 

 

 

VT LEG #305626 v.1 

H.249 1 

Introduced by Representatives Sweaney of Windsor, Devereux of Mount 2 

Holly, Evans of Essex, and Martin of Wolcott 3 

Referred to Committee on  4 

Date:  5 

Subject: Municipal government; intermunicipal services; regional planning 6 

commissions; regional council of governments 7 

Statement of purpose of bill as introduced:  This bill proposes to allow a 8 

regional planning commission to enter into an agreement with its member 9 

municipalities to create a regional council of governments.  The council would 10 

assist those municipalities in planning for common needs. 11 

An act relating to intermunicipal services and the authority to create a 12 

regional council of governments 13 

It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont:  14 

Sec. 1.  24 V.S.A. chapter 121, subchapter 7 is added to read: 15 

Subchapter 7.  Regional Council of Governments 16 

§ 4948.  CREATION OF REGIONAL COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 17 

(a)  Any regional planning commission may enter into an agreement 18 

between or among its municipalities to establish a regional council of 19 

governments. 20 



BILL AS INTRODUCED H.249 

2015 Page 2 of 4 

 

 

VT LEG #305626 v.1 

(b)  The agreement must: 1 

(1)  provide at least 50 percent of its representatives shall be elected 2 

municipal officials from member municipalities; and 3 

(2)  specify the organization, method of withdrawal, method of 4 

terminating the agreement, and the grounds for suspension of member 5 

municipalities. 6 

(c)  The council shall adopt bylaws designating the officers of the council 7 

and providing for the conduct of its business. 8 

§ 4949.  FINANCES; STAFF 9 

(a)  Expenses.  The legislative bodies of the member municipalities may 10 

appropriate funds to meet the expenses of the council. 11 

(b)  Funds.  The council may accept funds, grants, gifts, and services from: 12 

(1)  the federal government; 13 

(2)  the State of Vermont or its agencies, departments, or 14 

instrumentalities; 15 

(3)  any other governmental unit, whether a member of the council or 16 

not; and 17 

(4)  private and civic sources. 18 

(c)  Staff.  The council may employ any staff and consult and retain any 19 

experts that it considers necessary. 20 



BILL AS INTRODUCED H.249 

2015 Page 3 of 4 

 

 

VT LEG #305626 v.1 

§ 4950.  POWERS AND DUTIES 1 

(a)  The council may: 2 

(1)  Assist local governments in planning for common need and mutual 3 

benefit through cooperation and coordination.  The council may undertake 4 

activities that it considers appropriate, including matters affecting health, 5 

safety, welfare, education, economic conditions, and development. 6 

(2)  Promote cooperative arrangements and coordinate action among its 7 

members, including arrangements and actions with respect to planning, 8 

community development, joint purchasing, intermunicipal services and 9 

infrastructure. 10 

(3)  Make recommendations for review and action to its members and 11 

other public agencies that perform functions within the region. 12 

(b)  The council, on behalf of a majority of its member municipalities, may 13 

exercise any power, privilege, or authority capable of exercise by a member 14 

municipality and necessary or desirable for dealing with problems of local or 15 

regional concern, except essential legislative powers, taxing authority, or 16 

eminent domain power.  This authority is in addition to any other authority 17 

granted to regional planning commissions in statute. 18 

(c)  Where a regional planning commission has been established, the 19 

member municipalities, by appropriate action, may provide for the transfer of 20 



BILL AS INTRODUCED H.249 

2015 Page 4 of 4 

 

 

VT LEG #305626 v.1 

all assets, liabilities, rights, and obligations of the commission to the council 1 

and provide for the dissolution of the commission. 2 

Sec. 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE 3 

This act shall take effect on passage. 4 

















 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 4           October 5, 2015 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
October 5, 2015 6:30 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair (via phone); Stuart King, Vice Chair (via phone); 5 
John Bartlett, Clerk (Presiding Chair); Kenneth Nolan, Member   6 
 7 
Selectboard Members Not Present: John Cushing, Member  8 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Roger Hunt, Public Works Director; Erik 9 
Wells, Director Administration & Community Services; Steve Burke, Rod Moore, Fire & Rescue; Don 10 
Turner Jr., Fire & Rescue Chief 11 
 12 
Others Present:  Bryan Davis, manager of project- CCRPC; John Dempsey, Toole Design Group 13 
 14 
I. Call to Order –  Bartlett called to order at 6:30 PM 15 
 16 
II. Flag Salute – Bartlett led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.   17 

 18 
III. Agenda Review-  none 19 
 20 
IV. Public Forum –  none  21 
 22 
V. New Business and Department Items 23 

 24 
A. Presentation of RR Street Alternatives – Informational 25 

John Dempsey of Toole Design Group presented two design alternatives & estimated costs. 26 
Alternative concepts –RR St & Intersection Barnum – connect gap, pedestrian facilities. 27 

• East Side Alternative – 5’ sidewalk segment w/ 3’ wide buffer.  Curb extension, 28 
traffic device.  ADA curb ramps and beacons.  Gate Arm & retro fit existing.   29 
Estimate proposal $177,000 30 

• West Side Alternative – 5’ sidewalk, two pedestrian railroad vehicular gate, 31 
pedestrian path behind. Curb extension curb cut. Est. proposal $216,000 32 

Discussion covered both options.     33 
 34 
Adam made motion to accept East Alternative as preferred RR Street Alternative.  Second 35 
King.  Further discussion - Nolan clarify motion is preference only not financial commitment 36 
at this time.  37 
Independent Roll Call. Motion passes 5-0.   38 
 39 

B.  Financing for Fire & Rescue Purchase of an Ambulance 40 
Don Turner, Chief Fire & Rescue presented history overview of ambulance having light duty 41 
chassis with 3 yr expectancy.  Study revealed medium duty truck expect 7 yrs estimate life.  42 
Light is overloaded before putting people in back.  Ambulance box will far outlast.   43 
Proposal to purchase a new medium duty chassis and have it remounted with 2008 Box for 44 
an estimate of $160,000 compare to new purchase of $245-$260,000.  Bring back service 45 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 4           October 5, 2015 
 

next spring 6-8 months. Estimate includes use of loaner ambulance in interim.   46 
After discussion Turner reiterated need an ambulance and waiting 2 weeks may severely 47 
throw off timetable to get back operation. $156K in fire reserve fund.  Any previously 48 
earmarked funds for Air Pack can wait.  Timing critical on chassis more important. 49 
 50 
Barlow Casey, Town Manager explained Emergency Management Reserve and Fire-EMS 51 
fund balance accounts history.  Recommended utilizing two different sources- $71K 52 
emergency fund existing within General Fund number of years and balance in capital fund.   53 
Nolan questioned previous Selectboard intent and future activity $250K transfer into 54 
reserve fund defined by KBS audit for capital reserve not necessarily Rescue later dedicated 55 
as such. What do we have right to do with previous excess funds?  56 
 57 
Board concurred ambulance purchase necessary and needs to be timely.  Assured funds 58 
available. Further discussion of the 71K and its history at future meeting.  59 
 60 
Adams made motion to purchase ambulance for $156,000 from existing fire & rescue 61 
equipment reserve fund.  King second. No further discussion. Roll Call Vote, passes 5-0. 62 
 63 

C. Update on RT. 7 Sidewalk & Streetscape Project 64 
Erik Wells, Director – Administration & Community Services provided update since last 65 
meeting from LandWorks.  Proposed Schedule & Timeline & Logistics.  66 
Rebrand as “Milton 4D Project-Defining Downtown from the Diner to the Dam”  - 67 
importance of community members involved and to own project.  Preliminary meeting Oct. 68 
14th  & Sat. Oct. 24th marquee event starting in community room. Include walk portion Rt 7.  69 
LandWorks to return on November 18th for additional outreach event.   70 
 71 
Raised question of potential to discuss a possible Town Green Space at this time – defining 72 
feature coincides with core project.  LandWorks felt it did coincide but outside of scope of 73 
Diner – Dam as separate project would be estimate of $5,000 to incorporate.   74 
 75 
After discussion the Board felt it was premature to have this discussion and engagement for 76 
ideas regarding the Town Green concept at this time. Something to consider in the future. 77 
   78 
Bartlett stated reminder to attract viewpoint to attract commercial as well as public 79 
needs/desires.     80 
 81 

D.  Set Date for Next Selectboard Meeting  82 
Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manger 83 
Scheduled Third Mon. Oct. 19th at 6PM Nolan has conflict and will be late.  King present,   84 
Adams hopefully available.  Check availability with John Cushing before to make sure at least 85 
three present. 86 

VI. Old Business 87 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 4           October 5, 2015 
 

 88 
A. Bond Anticipation Note – Route 7 Conceptual Design Project 89 

Barlow Casey presented details before final quote from People’s United. $70K rounded up 90 
per last meeting’s motion.  Timing for documents about a week.   91 
 92 
Look into state law requiring 3 people physically at table and available to sign (2 present 93 
and 2 electronically present).  Acting chair signature falls as chair.  Under State Stature this 94 
is OK, communicated by VLCT. Chair can sign business approved, Board vote in minutes is 95 
record on the action. 96 

 97 
B. FY’17 Budget Timeline & Selectboard Meeting Dates – Discussion 98 

Wells presented revised schedule for budget meeting hearings.  Payroll and benefits takes 99 
up ½ general fund budget good place to start – begin with overview Nov. 2nd.  100 
Helpful for staff to have dates ahead on meeting times for planning. 101 
Adams proposed switching capital improvement budget which generates lots of questions 102 
for Directors.  Send dept. heads away with ques. and then come back for individual  103 
department budget review.  No new items to be dropped the night of review.  Department 104 
Heads come prepared with brief presentation. 105 
Finance Director needs to be present at every meeting.  Jan. 18th not town holiday but will 106 
consider during calendar to move meeting to January 19th.  107 

 108 
VI. Reconsideration - none 109 
 110 
VII. Manager’s Report  111 

Barlow Casey previously drilled down on a lot of issues. Primary focus now budget.  112 
 113 

VIII. Potential and/or Future Agenda Items - none 114 
 115 

IX. Warrant/Report # 7 & Supplemental Warrant 116 
Bartlett present Warrant/Report #7 in the amount of $68,784.89 117 
Line items random order no specific reason: 118 
$3,507 Alert-All Corp-Fire prevention materials (MFD open house handouts) 119 
$850 Fred Peet, Attorney- Title search Village Cemetery Acquisition 120 
$3,209.25 Repair Dump truck,  121 
$500 Little League – annual allocation 122 
$6,379.93 Stizel, Page, Fletcher - legal services 9 cases. 123 
$4,499 The Tech Group – 3HP Probook 650 Laptops & software 124 
Sullivan, Powers & Company $17,400 audit and account reconciliation.  125 
Watch Guard Video $4800 replace police cruiser cam. 126 
Bartlett recommend approval of orders for $68,784.89 127 
 128 
King made motion to approve orders as presented on Warrant Report #7 in the amount of 129 
$68,784.89.  Adams Seconded.   No further discussion.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 130 

 131 
Bartlett presented one Supplemental Warrant -$330,055.77 to US Bank for principal & interest 132 
bond payments – (municipal building, library expansion, fire station, tower truck, water 133 
improvements, water system rehab, village core sewer) 134 
Question shows credit for interest? Follow-up with Davis if overpayment or what. 135 
 136 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 4           October 5, 2015 
 

Bartlett moved to approve.  King Seconded.   No further discussion.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 137 
X. Minutes of the Selectboard Meeting of September 21th, 2015. 138 

 139 
Adams made motion to approve the minutes of the Selectboard meeting of September 21st as 140 
presented.  King Seconded.  No further discussion. Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 141 
 142 

XI.  Possible/Anticipated Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 143 
Nolan made motion that premature public knowledge about Real Estate, Legal & Personnel 144 
matters would cause the Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage  145 
  146 
Adams second.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 147 
 148 
Nolan made motion to move to Executive Session to discuss Real Estate, Legal & Personnel 149 
matters under the provisions of Title 1 V.S.A. 313 (a) (2), 1 V.S.A. 313 (a) (1) and V.S.A. 313 (a) 150 
(3) respectively.   151 
King Seconded.  No further discussion.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 152 
 153 
Barlow Casey requested the presence of Erik Wells, Director of Administration & Community 154 
Services.  Approved. 155 
 156 
Move to Executive Session 8:26PM 157 
 158 
Motion made by Adams to close executive session.  King Seconded.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 159 
 160 
Executive Session closed at 10:10 161 
 162 
No action from executive session.   163 
 164 

 165 
XII. Adjournment 166 

 167 
Adams moved to adjourn Selectboard meeting.  Nolan Seconded.  Roll call vote, passes 5-0. 168 
 169 
Bartlett adjourn at 10:13PM 170 

 171 
These proceedings were live-streamed and filmed by LCATV and audio-recorded by the Town. 172 

 173 
Respectfully Submitted, 174 

 175 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 176 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 177 
 178 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 179 
 180 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk 181 

 182 


	SB Agenda Oct 19 2015
	Resolution, Extra Mile Day 2015
	Resolution

	Financial Report
	finance update 10.19
	MIN15-002 AOT_MIN Agr for Route 7 10_08_2015 (2)
	SLB.2015.02.Catamount8.Monument.SR
	Design
	doc15845820151016104858 (2)
	DRAFT Council of Governments FAQ Oct 9 2015
	H-0249 As Introduced
	warrant 8
	2015 SLB min 0ct 05 draft cl

